"The teaching and conduct of this school are based on the Christian Religion . . . The trustees and teachers believe that man’s knowledge of right and wrong has been revealed by Almighty God, and demonstrated by the life and teaching of Jesus Christ, and that man is guided by the Holy Spirit to live according to God’s revelation.”  The Founder
The First Officers of
THE EPISCOPAL CHURCH SCHOOL
FOUNDATION, INC.

The Right Reverend Philip Cook, D.D., Fourth Bishop of Delaware and First President of the Foundation. On this Twentieth Anniversary of his Consecration, he is remembered as the first to be consulted by the Founder about the project of a Church boarding school for the Diocese of Delaware, and as a tower of strength in his leadership of St. Andrew’s from its founding in 1929 until his death in 1938.

Allan Johnstone Henry, Secretary and Treasurer of the Foundation since its incorporation in 1928. His tireless work on the myriad details of starting a new school, and his keen grasp of human and business affairs have placed him in the front rank of the School’s benefactors.

Alexis Felix du Pont, original Vice-President of the Foundation. He conceived and founded St. Andrew’s School, and gave his personal devotion, broad intellectual interests and fine judgment to its upbuilding. By his rich gifts and those of his sister Irene the School was built and established.

John Thompson Brown, Vice-President of the Foundation since 1937.

The Reverend Walden Fell 2nd, M. A. Oxon., Headmaster of St. Andrew's since its opening in 1930.
The First Faculty of St. Andrew's School numbered five. Of this number, one, the Reverend James Craig King Jr., died November 4, 1930, in a sailing accident. Another, Martin Curtler, left at the end of the year to study for an advanced degree at the University of Virginia. The remaining three are here still. The present Faculty numbers 17. Of these, Mr. Hall is at present on sick leave, Mr. Hutton, instructor in History, was on sabbatical leave at the time this picture was taken. The Rev. Mr. Large, second Chaplain of the School, resigned in 1940 to accept a parish.
On Wednesday, September 20, 1930, the School opened its doors to thirty-two boys, a number increased to thirty-five by the end of the year. There were but two forms, the second and third. They lived in the West and South dorms, and studied in class rooms number one and two. The East dorm and the study hall, though built, were unused.

The First Sixth Form. Of the eleven, nine were charter members. Eight have since graduated from college and taken their place in the world of business or in graduate schools. One of their number, W. D. Scott, Jr., is now a member of the St. Andrew's Faculty.
The student body of today numbers 116 students from points as far distant as Hawaii and Bermuda, Panama and Maine.

The Class of 1940. In the decade 1930-1940 St. Andrew's has sent 103 boys to 34 colleges throughout the United States.
Construction of the Main Building was begun in the summer of 1929 and was completed in time for the opening of School in September 1930.

Front of the Main Building after completion, September 1930.
Back of the Main Building after completion, September 1930.

The School was dedicated on October 14th, 1930. Two thousand people came to celebrate the Tenth Anniversary of Bishop Cook’s Consecration, and to help offer the School to the service of God.
For the opening of School in September 1930, there were completed the front section of the Main Building, the Garage, the Master's house now occupied by Mr. Cameron, and the Plant Superintendent's house.

In 1931 the Annex was built, and in 1932 the house on the point, now occupied by Mr. Hutton. The Boat House, a gift of Mr. Henry Belin du Pont, was built in 1934, and in that same year the Headmaster's House was completed, and used for boys and masters until 1937. The back part of the Gymnasium, including the basketball and squash courts, was built in 1935, the front section in 1937. The Maintenance Building came along in 1936.

The Addition to the Main Building, completed in 1937, was dedicated by services in the new Chapel on Founder's Day, April 14th. With the Addition was built Mr. MacInnes' house, and later in 1937 Mr. Sherwood's. Another Master's house has been started, and a second addition to the Main Building is projected. When this is finished, the School will accommodate its proposed top enrollment of 140 boys.

All these buildings except the Superintendent's house, Boat House and Maintenance Building were planned by Mr. Arthur H. Brockie, and built by the Turner Construction Company. The planting was laid out by Messrs. Wheelwright and Stevenson, and put in largely by the School force.
Organized athletics have been a regular part of the life of St. Andrew's since the Charter Members played football in the cow-pasture and raced against time in the School's one four-oared gig.

The upper picture shows the School at football practice on an October afternoon, with the Six Man teams scrimmaging in the foreground, and the Varsity Squad on the main field beyond.

The lower picture shows the Varsity four of 1940, which won the King's Cup, and was beaten by only one crew all season. The School now has a navy of a dozen shells and gigs.
THE STAFF

Miss Miller, Nurse

Mr. Cooper, Superintendent

Miss Michaelis, Housemother

Miss Welton, Librarian

Mr. Cochran, Farm Superintendent

Miss Jourdan and Kitchen Staff
GENERAL ACTIVITIES

Lecture

First Greek

Study Hall Job

Sixth Form Bridge

School Store

Rising Bell

Kitchen Job
ACTIVITIES

Nov. 19, 1930  St. Andrews School  Volume I  Number 1

St. Andrews' FlierV was joined with Midletown George Collens. St. Andrew's half-back was taken out of the St. Andrews Midletown football game on the 14th, owing to a broken arm. The accident occurred in the first period when Hilley was running the ball for a line plunge in an effort to make a first down.

Collens suffered a complete break of his arm and is now recovering.

The St. Andrews' students have elected a vestry committee. The purpose of this committee is to represent the students on questions that come up concerning them as a body.

The vestry are as follows: Robert Orr, Gordon Innsbruck, Martin Millers, and George Tice from the second form; Robert Mills and William O'Shea.

Mr. Viss, the headmaster, is the chairman of the committee.

Football

Our first attempt at the game did not prove very successful. St. Andrews was unable to get going. We hope next year to be more organized and to make a better showing.

Our first game was with Tower Hill and we lost 19-0. The first half was our Tower Hill. The second half we held much better.

Then played Episcopal Academy, and were defeated 29-0, it was only a case of one team being much better than the other.

Next played Midletown and again lost, but this time the score was a little more interesting than any of the previous ones. Again we did much better in the second half than the first half.

Much credit goes to the coaches for their attempt to teach us some football.

Mr. Caleb Layton gives Encyclopaedia Set

Mr. Layton, the first of the Trustees of the school, presented a fine set of Encyclopaedia Britannica to the school. This has been considered by many people to be the best Encyclopaedia published and it is going to be a great help to the boys in their studies.

Thanksgiving Entertainment

Mr. Curtin has asked that if any people wish to show their talent in any way he would be glad to have it. For an entertainent he wishes to give on the evening before Thanksgiving. Will all fellows who think they can help out please see Mr. Curtin.

First Cardinal

Publications — busy

Republican Rally 1936

Play, 1940
First St. Andrew’s Baseball Squad. “Tige” Richardson struck out the first nine men to face him in St. Andrew’s first game.
WINTER SPORTS

Basketball Practice

Pick-up Hockey

Squash

Wrestling Meet
COMMENCEMENT

Charles Turner Memorial Tennis Cup

Luncheon

Alumni Banquet

Diploma

“So long!”

Loading up
The Mural which forms the covers of this book was painted by Mr. N. C. Wyeth and presented to the School in 1938 by Mrs. Irenée du Pont, sister of the Founder, and one of the Donors of the School. The painting covers the east wall of the Dining Hall. Its right hand side (see front cover) depicts the planning of the School by its Trustees and Headmaster, its left hand side (see above) the realization of the School, with the buildings completed and the students grouped around Alma Mater.

The figures on the front cover, from left to right, are: Mr. Allan J. Henry, Mr. Walter J. Laird, Hon. Richard S. Rodney, Rev. Walden Pell 2nd, Headmaster, Mr. John O. Platt, Mr. A. Felix du Pont, Founder, Mr. J. Thompson Brown, Bishop Cook, Mr. H. Belin du Pont, Mr. Caleb S. Layton. Since the painting of the Mural Bishop Cook has died, and two other men have been added to the Board, Thomas F. Cadwalader and Bishop McKinstrey, who has been its President since 1939.